
 

 

 

Please ask for: Howard Bassett 

 
 

 
Direct Dial: 01392 265107 

Email: howard.bassett@exeter.gov.uk 

Our ref:  

 
To the Chair and Members  
of the Planning Committee 
 

Your ref:  

 

 
Office of Corporate Manager Democratic & Civic Support 

Civic Centre, Paris Street, Exeter, EX1 1JN Tel: 01392 277888 Fax: 01392 265593 www.exeter.gov.uk 

 

A meeting of the PLANNING COMMITTEE will be held in the RENNES ROOM, CIVIC CENTRE, 
PARIS STREET, EXETER at 5.30 pm on MONDAY 24TH JUNE 2013 to consider the following 
business. If you have an enquiry regarding any items on this agenda, please contact Howard Bassett, 
Democratic Services Officer (Committees) on Exeter 265107. 
 
Entry to the Civic Centre can be gained through the Customer Service Centre, Paris Street.  
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Part I: Items suggested for discussion with the press and public present 

1 APOLOGIES  

 To receive apologies for absence from Committee members.  
 

 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 Councillors are reminded of the need to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests that relate to business on the agenda and which have not already been 
included in the register of interests, before any discussion takes place on the 
item. Unless the interest is sensitive, you must also disclose the nature of the 
interest. In accordance with the Council's Code of Conduct, you must then leave 
the room and must not participate in any further discussion of the item. 
Councillors requiring clarification should seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer 
prior to the day of the meeting. 
  
 

 

3 LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 EXCLUSION 
OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 

 It is not considered that the Committee would be likely to exclude the press and 
public during the consideration of any of the items on this agenda but, if it should 
wish to do so, then the following resolution should be passed: - 
 

RECOMMENDED that, under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the press and public be excluded from the meeting for particular item(s) on the 
grounds that it (they) involve(s) the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in the relevant paragraphs of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Act.  
 

 



Public Speaking 

Public speaking on planning applications and tree preservation orders is permitted at this 
Committee.  Only one speaker in support and one opposed to the application may speak and the 
request must be made by 5pm on the Thursday before the meeting (full details available on 

request from the Member Services Officer). 
 

4 PLANNING APPLICATION NO. 13/3219/03 - FORMER FOXHAYES PRIMARY 
SCHOOL, GLOUCESTER ROAD, EXETER 

 

 To consider the report of the Assistant Director City Development. 
 

(Report circulated) 
  
 

5 - 12 

5 PLANNING APPLICATION NO. 13/3089/26 - MARSH BARTON STATION, 
CLAPPERBROOK LANE, EXETER 

 

 To consider the report of the Assistant Director City Development. 
 

(Report circulated) 
  
 

13 - 18 

6 PLANNING APPLICATION NO. 13/3207/26 - NEWCOURT STATION, OLD 
RYDON LANE, EXETER 

 

 To consider the report of the Assistant Director City Development. 
 

(Report circulated) 
  
 

19 - 24 

7 PLANNING APPLICATION NO. 13/3101/03 - ORCHARD BUNGALOW, 
LUDWELL LANE, EXETER 

 

 To consider the report of the Assistant Director City Development. 
 

(Report circulated) 

 
  
 

25 - 28 

8 LIST OF DECISIONS MADE AND WITHDRAWN APPLICATIONS  

 To consider the report of the Assistant Director City Development. 
 

(Report circulated) 
  
 

29 - 50 

9 ENFORCEMENT PROGRESS REPORT  

 To consider the report of the Assistant Director City Development. 
 

(Report circulated) 
  
 

51 - 52 



10 SECTION 106 AGREEMENTS  

 To consider the report of the Assistant Director City Development 
 

(Report circulated) 
  
 

53 - 112 

11 APPEALS REPORT  

 To consider the report of the Assistant Director City Development. 
 

(Report circulated) 
  
 

113 - 116 

12 SITE INSPECTION PARTY  

 To advise that the next Site Inspection Party will be held on Tuesday 9 July 2013 at  
9.30 a.m. The Councillors attending will be Bialyk, Mrs Henson and Tippins. 
 
  
 

 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING  

 
 The next scheduled meeting of the Planning Committee will be held on 

Monday 22 July 2013 5.30 pm. in the Civic Centre.  
 
 

 
 

Membership - 
Councillors Bialyk (Chair), Spackman (Deputy Chair), Choules, Denham, Donovan, Edwards, 
Mrs Henson, Mitchell, Owen, Prowse, Sutton, Tippins and Winterbottom 
 

 

Individual reports on this agenda can be produced in large print 
on request to Democratic Services (Committees) on 01392 
265275. 

 
Please remember to recycle. If you would prefer not to receive paper copies please let us 
know. Contact Democratic Services (Committees) on 01392 265197 or email 
committee.services@exeter.gov.uk  

Find out more about Exeter City Council services by looking at our web site 
http://www.exeter.gov.uk.  This will give you the dates of all future Committee meetings.  
Alternatively, contact Howard Bassett on (01392) 265107 for further information. 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
ITEM NO.  4 COMMITTEE DATE: 24/06/2013 
 
APPLICATION NO:   13/3219/03 FULL PLANNING PERMISSION 
APPLICANT: Mr Whitlock 

Steiner Academy Exeter 
PROPOSAL:  Consent for the installation of temporary buildings on land 

at Gloucester Road for use by the Steiner Academy Exeter 
(education use (D1)). Creation of temporary outdoor play 
area and associated works. Temporary consent for up to 
three years. 

LOCATION:  Former Foxhayes Primary School, Gloucester Road, 
Exeter, EX4 2EE 

REGISTRATION DATE:  02/05/2013 
EXPIRY DATE: 27/06/2013 
 

13

66

1

1
5

1

2

2

56

1
7

1

3

El Sub Sta

61a

13

12

15

12

27

37

41

5

10

51

8

65 57

51

39

66

56

6
1

2

5
9

86

7
6

PINE
 AVE

NUE

El

Sta
Sub

CYP
RES

S DR
IVE

TRURO DRIVE

G
LO
U
CE
STER

 R
O
A
D

LB

 
Scale 1:2000 
This map is based on Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her 
Majesty’s Stationery Office A Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings. Exeter City Council 100049053 

 
HISTORY OF SITE 

 
94/0759/26 -  Single-storey extension to form pre-school unit  17/01/1995 
01/1239/26 -  Ground floor extension to provide nursery 

classroom on north elevation 
PER 15/10/2001 

10/0290/26 -  Access road from west boundary with Gloucester 
Road. 

PER 11/05/2011 

  
DESCRIPTION OF SITE/PROPOSAL 
 
The application site comprises a parcel of land extending to approx 0.75 hectare situated on 
the east side of Gloucester Road. Aside from the boundary with Gloucester Road itself, the 
site is bounded by the gardens of existing residential properties. Vehicular access to the site 
is provided from Gloucester Road, and two historical pedestrian access points exist in the 
south-east corner of the site, one leading onto Pine Avenue and one onto Truro Drive. The 
recognised planning use of the site is for educational use with the site previously being 
occupied by Foxhayes Primary School (which had a capacity of 235 pupils), although the 

Agenda Item 4

Page 5



buildings associated with the former school have since been removed and the site is 
currently vacant. 
 

The proposal comprises the erection of a series of temporary classrooms located around the 
existing access road and turning head for use as a school for a temporary period of up to 3 
years. These temporary buildings would utilise the slab foundations that remain from the 
previous school buildings. The buildings would be single storey in nature and have a 
combined floor area of 687 m². The proposed development will provide temporary 
accommodation for a new state funded free school, in the form of a Steiner Academy, whilst 
they secure a permanent site elsewhere within the city. This temporary proposal will provide 
for up to 130 pupils in the first year (reception to Year 3 and Year 7 only), rising to 182 pupils 
in the second year (reception to Year 4 and Years 7 & 8). Although consent is sought for 3 
years it is anticipated that the third year will not be required as the permanent site should be 
up and running by then. The school needs to be operational by September 2013 and 
therefore this application is key to their strategy. 
 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION SUPPLIED BY THE APPLICANT 
 
The application is accompanied by the following supporting information -  
 

• Design and Access Statement 

• Planning Statement 

• Transport Statement, and  

• School Travel Plan. 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
3 letters of representation have been received raising the following issues -  
 

• previous damage to boundaries 

• proximity of buildings and play area to adjoining residential property - visual impact and 
disruption associated with children playing 

• increased traffic/congestion 

• preference for a single dwelling on the site. 
 
In addition to the written representations referred to above a number of local residents have 
contacted the case officer by phone to raise issues relating to highway matters (including 
pedestrian access) and trees. 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment (DCC) - Comments as follows -  
 

"The temporary school is expected to cater for 130 pupils in its first year (reception, years 1, 
2, 3 and 7) rising to 182 the next year. The sole vehicular access is provided onto Gloucester 
Road. A secondary pedestrian access links onto Pines Avenue, although since the previous 
school here was closed this has become overgrown. 

The submitted application highlights that the pedestrian route to the south of the site will be 
reused as part of the development. This is an important measure for promoting sustainable 
travel to the site and it is recommended that its provision is secured through a condition of 
any planning permission. 

The vehicular access onto Gloucester Road is a priority junction. When this previously 
served as the access to the Foxhayes School there were “School Keep Clear” markings 
provided adjacent to the access. To provide a safe and suitable access to the site these 
markings should be reinstated, which is typically secured through a Traffic Regulation Order 
(TRO). The timescales to provide these at the time of September opening with the 

Page 6



appropriate TRO will be challenging. The applicant is therefore advised that in the interim 
these should be provided in line with specifications set out in the Traffic Signs Regulations 
and General Directions as advisory markings as part of the site access. Details of this will 
need to be agreed before implementation and it is recommended that this is secured through 
an appropriate condition. 

To enable enforcement of these markings they need to be supported by a Traffic Regulation 
Order. The cost of this will need to be funded by the applicant and therefore a contribution of 
£6,000 to cover the cost of implementing the necessary orders and removing these when 
any permission lapses is requested.  

The proposed site is approximately 330 metres from Exwick Heights Primary School. Current 
pick up and drop off at that school results in a concentrated period of high on street parking 
demand that creates a congested environment to the detriment to highway safety and 
amenity of local residents. This parking can, particularly in the afternoon, extend down past 
the junction of Gloucester Road and Knowle Drive close to the access of the Foxhayes site.  

As agreed with the highway authority, the applicant has submitted a transport statement 
alongside the application. This document highlights that the proposed development is 
expected to generate an additional 147 trips/day in the first year and 198 trips/day in the 
second year.  

If these additional movements were to occur concurrently as those at Exwick Heights it would 
be expected to significantly exacerbate the existing problems. This would increase the 
likelihood of unsafe manoeuvres on the public highway which could potentially have severe 
safety implications, particularly given the demographic of those likely to be on foot at the 
time. 

To mitigate this the applicant has highlighted that they propose to operate different opening 
times to the nearby Exwick Heights and the highway authority welcomes this move. This is 
fundamental to the acceptability of the application oh highway grounds and therefore 
recommended that a condition on the opening hours of the school is attached in the granting 
of any permission. 

We are pleased that the applicant has been in frequent liaison with the Highway Authority 
regarding the site Travel Plan. The submitted Travel Plan is comprehensive and covers a 
range of measures that should help to reduce the number of, particularly single occupancy, 
car borne trips. To ensure that the measures within this plan are adhered to a condition of 
that effect is recommended.  

The proposed application has the potential to have a severe impact on the operation and 
safety of the public highway. However, the applicant has put forward a number of measures, 
particularly with regards to opening hours, that can make the proposals acceptable to the 
highway authority. Subject to these measures being secured by conditions then the highway 
authority would raise no objection." 

 
Strategic Planning - Children's Services (DCC) - "I am writing  to confirm that Devon County 
Council is in ownership of the former Foxhayes Primary School site and has been in 
discussion with the Department for Education regarding the proposal. The Education 
Authority recognises the proposal supports the Governments' Free School programme 
targeted at increasing choice and diversity for parents." 
 
Police Architectural Liaison Officer - No objection in principle - Comments on design aspects 
from the perspective of minimising the potential for criminal activities. 
 
PLANNING POLICIES/POLICY GUIDANCE 
 
Central Government Guidance 
NPPF - National Planning Policy Framework - Para 14 Presumption in favour of sustainable 
development, Para 17 Core Planning Principles, Paras 32, 36-37, Paras 56-68 Requiring 
Good Design, Para 72 - Education provision, Para 212 Confirmation of Policies in NPPF as 

Page 7



material considerations, Para 215 weight to be attached to Local Plan policies in 
accordance with their degree of consistency with the NPPF 
 
DCLG Policy Statement on 'Planning for Schools Development'  August 2011 
 
Exeter Local Development Framework Core Strategy 
CP10 - Meeting Community Needs 
CP15 - Sustainable Construction 
CP17 - Design and Local Distinctiveness 
 
Exeter Local Plan First Review 1995-2011 
AP1 - Design and Location of Development 
AP2 - Sequential Approach  
T1 - Hierarchy of Modes 
T2 - Accessibility Criteria 
T3 - Encouraging Use of Sustainable Modes  
T10 - Car Parking Standards 
DG1 - Objectives of Urban Design 
DG7 - Crime Prevention and Safety 
 
Exeter City Council  
 
Sustainable Transport SPD 
 

OBSERVATIONS 

 
This site was previously occupied by Foxhayes Primary School and although all the school 
buildings have subsequently been demolished and cleared from the site the lawful planning 
use of the site remains use for the provision of education (Use class D1). Consequently, the 
principle of the re-use of this site by the Steiner Academy for a non-profit making 
independent state-funded school is inherently acceptable and the consideration of this 
proposal relates to the erection of temporary buildings and creation of outdoor play areas in 
connection with that use. 
 
Material to the consideration of this proposal is the Government's policy position regarding 
the development of schools as set out in paragraph 72 of the NPPF which states -  
 
"The Government attaches great importance to ensuring that a sufficient 
choice of school places is available to meet the needs of existing and new 
communities. Local planning authorities should take a pro active, positive and 
collaborative approach to meeting this requirement, and to development that 
will widen choice in education. They should: 
 
●  give great weight to the need to create, expand or alter schools; and 
 
●  work with schools promoters to identify and resolve key planning issues 
before applications are submitted." 
 
Funding for the creation of a state funded Steiner Academy free school has been allocated 
by the Department for Education. Whilst the search for a permanent site is on-going a 
temporary site is required to allow the school to meet the requirement to be open for 
admissions from September 2013. The application site was selected for the temporary 
school following pre-application discussion with officers of both the City and County Council. 
Permission has been sought for a maximum period of 3 years although it is envisaged that 
the move to a permanent site is likely to place sooner than that. 
 
When considering a location for the temporary school site the former Exwick Middle School 
site further along Gloucester Road was considered. However, this was dismissed due to its 

Page 8



proximity to the new Exwick Heights school and the potential highway issues arising from two 
schools in such close juxtaposition. Being slightly further away from the Exwick Heights 
school the application site was considered preferable in highway/transportation terms. 
 
Notwithstanding that provision of education is a lawful use of the application site most of the 
concerns expressed by the public in response to consultation have related to 
highway/transportation matters. The main concerns have related to traffic congestion and 
associated highway safety impact around drop-off and pick-up times, and pedestrian access 
to the school in terms of impact on surrounding residential areas. The main access to the 
school, including the vehicular access to the staff parking on site, will be off Gloucester Road 
as was the case for the former Primary School. Two bus stops are located within close 
proximity to the school entrance and therefore provide a convenient alternative mode of 
transport to the private car for potential pupils of the school. To further reduce potential 
congestion in the local area associated with drop-off/pick-up activities it is proposed to 
stagger the opening times of the school so that they are different to the opening times of the 
nearby Exwick Heights school. According to their website Exwick Heights Primary School 
operates as follows - 
 

• Nursery AM sessions open from 8.30 -11.30, PM sessions 12.30 -15.30 (with collection 
allowed from 15.15 onwards. 

• Key Stage 1 (Years 1&2) - Access to school ground from 8.25 (classrooms from 8.40), 
End of day 15.15 

• Key Stage 2 (Years 3,4,5,6) - Access to school ground from 8.25 (classrooms from 8.40), 
End of day 15.20. 

 
The Steiner Academy are proposing opening Hours of 9.00 - 15.30. The acceptability of 
these proposed opening hours from a transportation issue perspective are being discussed 
with the County Council and the outcome of these discussions will be reported at Committee. 
 
Utilising the pedestrian access into the site from Pine Avenue will reduce walking times to the 
school from parts of the City and the School Travel Plan will promote these routes as 
alternative means of access. The existence of this alternative access will also disperse drop-
off/pick-up vehicular traffic over a wider area and help to minimise congestion on Gloucester 
Road. The agent has been asked to clarify whether or not it is also the intention to utilise the 
existing pedestrian access leading to Truro Drive in connection with this proposal. 
 
It is understandable that local residents will be concerned about the inevitable increase in 
traffic in the local area associated with re-establishment of a school on site. However, it is not 
considered that a school accommodating a maximum of 182 pupils for a temporary period of 
up to 3 years will have such a significant adverse highway impact that would warrant refusal 
of the application. This is especially the case given the previous school use of the site, and 
the Government's stated policy position on school related development. The Highway 
Authority has confirmed that provided conditions are imposed regarding road markings, 
pedestrian access, parking, school travel plan and opening hours, and a contribution towards 
the cost of appropriate traffic orders outside the site is secured, the proposal is acceptable 
from a highway impact perspective. 
 
The relationship of the proposed school buildings and associated play areas to surrounding 
residential properties is a material planning consideration in respect of this proposal. The use 
of temporary buildings is considered acceptable in the context of the temporary nature of the 
proposal pending a permanent site for the Steiner Academy (which is actively being pursued) 
being delivered. 
 
The temporary buildings are single storey and will be sited in a group around the existing 
road and turning head within the site in a broadly similar position to the original school 
buildings. Given the massing of the proposed temporary buildings, and their positioning on 
the site, it is considered that the physical relationship to surrounding properties is acceptable 

Page 9



and would not be overbearing or prejudicial to the residential amenities of the occupants of 
those properties. The play area for the pre-school classroom is located between the 
temporary buildings and the side boundary of no 51 Gloucester Road and 57 Knowle Drive, it 
will be fenced and does not extend right up to the common boundary. This relationship is 
considered acceptable especially in light of the former school use of the site as a whole, and 
more specifically this part of the site as a grassed area that formed part of the school's 
available external play areas/ancillary land. The fact that this remains a lawful use of the land 
is also a material consideration. The remaining play area facilities to serve the temporary 
school involve the re-use of former play areas and hard surfaced playgrounds elsewhere 
within the site. 
 
Western Area Working Party (04/06/13) 
 
Members noted the representations raised, particularly those relating to traffic impact. Given 
the previous use of the site as a primary school, and the fact that the temporary buildings are 
to be located in a similar position to the original school buildings, members felt the impact of 
the proposal, and relationship to surrounding properties, was acceptable. Members noted 
that the application would be determined by Planning Committee. 
 
Conclusion 
 
The site has previously been used as a Primary school and this remains the lawful planning 
use of the land and this is material consideration in the assessment of the merits of this 
proposal. The proposal is for a temporary period of time pending a permanent site for the 
new Steiner Academy being finalised and delivered. The proposal will meet a recognised 
demand for additional school places in Exeter, and widen choice in terms of the type of 
education provision available within the City. As such the proposal is consistent with the 
Government's stated presumption in favour of the development of state-funded schools. 
Whilst the proposal will inevitably result in an increase in traffic movements around the site 
for the duration of the consent it is not considered, especially in light of the previous school 
use of this site, that the impact would be significantly adverse in terms of highway safety. The 
buildings themselves are modest in scale and their siting in relation to surrounding properties 
is considered acceptable. This temporary proposal is essential to the establishment of a new 
state-funded Steiner Academy in Exeter as the school needs to be operational by September 
2013 in line with funding arrangements and the fact that pupils have already applied for 
places at the school from that date. 
 
Overall the proposal is considered acceptable. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve subject to the following conditions: 
 
APPROVE subject to the following conditions: 
 
1) C05  -  Time Limit - Commencement 
 
2) The buildings hereby approved shall be wholly removed from the site and the use 

shall be discontinued and the site restored to its former condition no later  31st July 
2016 .  
Reason:  The buildings are temporary in nature and are unsuitable as a permanent 
features in this locality. 

 
3) The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict 

accordance with the submitted details received by the Local Planning Authority on 
2nd and 20th May 2013 (dwg. nos. Site Location plan, 72/0008274-101 Rev J, SK-
01 Rev A, 07R-678DCT-21-01 Rev C and 07R-372SCT-21-01 Rev D), as modified 
by other conditions of this consent. 

Page 10



Reason:  In order to ensure compliance with the approved drawings. 
 
4) The development hereby approved shall not be brought into use until the pedestrian 

access from the site onto Pine Avenue has been re-instated for use in accordance 
with measures that shall previously have been submitted to and agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the said access shall be maintained and 
made available for use in accordance with those details for the duration of the 
consent. 
Reason: To ensure that adequate facilities are available for the traffic attracted to 
the site, in the interest of public safety 

 
5) Unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority in writing no part of the 

development hereby approved shall be brought into its intended use until  
(1) the access, parking facilities, turning area and associated road markings have 
been provided in accordance with details that shall have been submitted to, and 
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority, and 
(2) the applicant has entered into a Section 106 Agreement, or equivalent 
arrangement, with the County Council to secure the making of a Traffic Regulation 
Order relating to the road markings referred to in (1) above. 
Thereafter those items referred to in (1) above shall be retained for the intended 
purpose at all times. 
Reason : To ensure that a safe and suitable access is provided for all users to the 
site, in accordance with paragraph 32 of the National Planning Policy Framework.  

 
6) The School Travel Plan prepared by RPS Planning and Development Ltd on behalf 

of the Education Funding Agency, and submitted in support of this application, shall 
be implemented in full upon commencement of the development hereby approved. 
Thereafter it shall be reviewed on an annual basis in accordance with the provisions 
set out in Section 4.3 of the document. Any amendments identified in the annual 
review shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Planning Authority and 
shall thereafter form part of the approved plan. 
Reason - To ensure that the development is implemented in such a way as to 
minimise the highway impact of the development and encourage the use of 
sustainable modes of transport. 

 
7) School opening hours (to be confirmed in update sheet following further negotiation) 
 
 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) 1985 (as amended). 
Background papers used in compiling the report: 
 
Files of planning applications available for inspection from the Customer Service Centre, 
Civic Centre, Paris Street, Exeter: Telephone 01392 265223 

 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
ITEM NO.  5 COMMITTEE DATE: 24/06/2013 
 
APPLICATION NO:   13/3089/26 DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL  

CONSULTATION 
APPLICANT: Devon County Council (Planning, Transportation and 

Enviroment) 
PROPOSAL:  Erection of a two platform railway halt with associated 

pedestrian footbridge, access and parking/turning area and 
emergency access road. 

LOCATION:  Marsh Barton Station, Clapperbrook Lane, Exeter, EX2 
REGISTRATION DATE:  15/04/2013 
EXPIRY DATE: 05/05/2013 
 

Isca CourtUnits

1

Elm

Units

2

Swallow

El  Sub Sta 1

3

5

Units

Westwoo d

1
4

2

F

Links House

E

D

A1

Th e Clarke  Centr e

C

A2

B

Baskerville House

El Sub  Sta

1  to  
1 0

Buildings
Tekoa

1
1

Pump House

Playing Field

6 .1m

Rivers ide Valley Park

D
ra
in

T
o
w
in
g
 P
ath

T
o
w
in
g
 P
ath

CG

E
xeter C

anal

Salmonpool Bridge
(Swing)

6 .1m

ETL

D
ra
i n

11 .3m

M
P
 1
9
6

G
R
A
C
E R

O
A
D

S
O
U
TH

D
ra
i n

D
ra
in

ALP
HIN

 BR
OOK

 RO
AD

E
T
L

Tank

Tank

ETL

E
T
L

Tank

Tank

H
E
NN

O
C
K
 R
O
A
D
 N
O
R
TH

GRA
CE R

OAD
 CEN

TRA
L

 
Scale 1:3000 
This map is based on Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her 
Majesty’s Stationery Office A Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings. Exeter City Council 100049053 

 
HISTORY OF SITE 

 
Planning permission was granted for an energy from waste facility on the adjacent site 
(planning ref 07/0927/25).The site was previously used for incineration and as a waste 
transfer station. This development is under construction and expected to become operational 
in summer 2014. 
 
DESCRIPTION OF SITE/PROPOSAL 

 
The application site (0.87 hectares) consists largely of existing railway operational land either 
side of the Exeter to Newton Abbot railway line to the eastern edge of the Marsh Barton 
Industrial Estate. The new station would be positioned on the eastern side of the new Energy 
from Waste facility currently under construction on Grace Road South.  
 
The application is for a two platform railway station. The station will be unstaffed, but fully 
accessible with waiting shelters, cycle racks, lighting, CCTV and a Help Point/ Customer 
Information Service. It is proposed to erect a new steel footbridge to provide access across 
the railway for pedestrians and cyclists. 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 13



Each of the platforms will be 125 metres in length, sufficient to accommodate four carriage 
trains.  
 
A waiting shelter (containing a Help/Information Point) will be provided on each platform and 
measure 7.3 metres wide, 2 metres deep and 2.5 metres high. 
 
Cycle storage shelters will be provided adjacent to both platforms and will accommodate 10 
cycle stands (up to 20 bicycles) on each side of the railway. These will measure 
approximately 7 metres wide, 2 metres deep and 1.97 metres in height. Whilst 40 cycle 
spaces are provided it is anticipated that demand will increase as service improvements are 
made between Exeter and Paignton to provide a 30 minute service frequency and so 
additional facilities will need to be provided in the future to around 20 more spaces. The 
proposed cycle facilities are within covered shelters, covered by CCTV and motion sensor 
lighting. 
 
The new pedestrian footbridge will be located to the south of and adjacent to the existing 
bridge for Clapperbrook Lane East. The footbridge will provide ramped and stair access to 
the platforms and bridge deck. The deck of the footbridge will be approximately 6 metres 
above the existing ground level of the railway, with parapets of 1.6 metres. The new 
footbridge has been designed to ensure that the station is fully accessible for all user groups. 
 
Access to the station will be from Clapperbrook Lane East, with a new access road with 
parking for 6 cars, 2 of which will be dedicated disabled spaces, provided to the east of the 
site (the southbound platform). A drop off point will also be provided. The new road 
carriageway will be 4.8 metres wide, with a 1.5 metres footway provided. To the west of the 
site serving the northbound platform a 3 metre emergency vehicle access with 
pedestrian/cyclist link will also be provided.  
 
Platform lighting will be mounted on 7 metre high columns. The lanterns will utilise high 
efficiency fluorescent lamps and use flat glass diffusers to minimise glare and overspill to 
surrounding areas. These lights will also illuminate the staircases for the footbridge. Lighting 
columns will also be provided within the proposed main access and car park to the east of 
the railway and at the site entrance with Clapperbrook Lane. 
 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION SUPPLIED BY THE APPLICANT 
 
The application was accompanied by a Planning Statement which incorporated the Design 
and Access Statement, In addition, the following documents have been provided:- 
Construction Traffic Management Plan, Flood Risk Assessment; Sustainability Statement; 
Ecology Report (Reptile and Dormouse Surveys including Phase 1 Survey Update); Tree 
Survey Report; Site Waste Management Plan; Geotechnical Interpretative Report and 
Landscape Design Proposals. 
 
The proposed Marsh Barton railway station helps achieve the transportation objectives 
defined within the Exeter Local Plan First Review by locating along an existing, used railway 
line and adjacent to an existing trading estate. Its location will also provide an alternative, 
sustainable means of travel and reduce the number of individual motor vehicle journeys 
made to the estate. The design of the station also includes two fully accessible platforms, 
which will ensure that all user groups, particularly the vulnerable and mobility impaired will 
benefit from the proposal 
 

Main benefits that will be delivered by the proposed scheme include: 
- Improve access to Marsh Barton Trading Estate for both commuting staff. 
- Supporting significant levels of planned growth in the Devon area and supporting better 
access to employment, and leisure opportunities for the local community. 
- Achieving the vision of the Devon Metro Project which is to provide a package of measures 
to improve rail services, including longer trains, increased frequency of some services and 
several new rail stations, including at Marsh Barton, Newcourt and Edginswell. 

Page 14



- A fully accessible station forecourt with pedestrian footbridge that enables full disabled 
access, cycle provision, waiting shelters, CCTV, customer information services and security 
lighting to maintain a safe users experience. 
- Accordance with local and national planning policy which seeks to provide sustainable 
transport options. 
 
Main impacts from the proposed scheme are:- 
 
Landscape - the proposal includes the removal of tree and shrubs in order to facilitate two 
access points to the station forecourt. To mitigate the vegetation loss, a landscaping scheme 
is proposed which includes the planting of additional trees and shrubs. It is generally 
considered that the proposed planting mitigates against the loss and therefore the proposed 
scheme accords with the provision of planning policy that relates to the conservation and 
enhancement of the natural environment. 
 
Visual Impacts - the pedestrian footbridge will be the most visually obtrusive addition to the 
landscape, however, it is not anticipated to cause any significant deterioration in local visual 
amenity as it will be viewed in the context of the existing industrial estate and large scale 
buildings and will be no more intrusive than the existing pedestrian footbridge. 
 
Heritage - it is considered that the proposal will not have any physical impacts on historic 
structures, archaeological features or palaeoenvironmental deposits. Therefore, no 
archaeological or building recording will be required in mitigation of the proposed works. 
 
Ecology - a Phase 1 Habitat Survey was undertaken in 2012 and identified the presence of 
three reptile species and the potential to disturb nesting birds during construction. It is 
considered that with appropriate mitigation in place, the proposal will not have any adverse 
effects on local ecology. 
 
Noise - it is anticipated that noise levels in the vicinity of the station will increase during 
construction and operation. However it is anticipated that the noise levels would not increase 
to levels significantly greater that those already generated by the Marsh Barton Trading 
Estate and from trains that use the existing railway line. 
 
Air Quality - it is considered that the proposal will have no adverse effect on the local air 
quality, and in fact, by encouraging a modal shift in transport habits, from use of the motor 
vehicle to the train, a small improvement in air quality is anticipated locally. 
 
Flooding and Water Quality - the Flood Risk Assessment states that the railway line is at risk 
of flooding from the River Exe. However, the proposed station platforms are not at risk of 
fluvial flooding, up to a 1 in 100 annual probability. There is no opportunity to locate the 
railway station on land in a lower flood risk zone and since the development is classified as 
'essential infrastructure' the proposal is considered to meet the Exception Test set out in the 
NPPF and is therefore considered to be acceptable. 
 
Contaminated land - ground investigations have been undertaken, and no evidence of 
significant contamination has been found at the site. 
 
Surrounding Amenity - there are no sensitive properties within the site vicinity and therefore 
no adverse effects on surrounding properties are predicted. The playing field to the east will 
not be affected by the proposal, nor will there be any effects on the nearby cycleway or 
walking route at Clapperbrook Lane. 
 
PLANNING POLICIES/POLICY GUIDANCE 
 
Central Government Guidance: National Planning Policy Framework 
 
Section 4 - Promoting Sustainable Transport 

Page 15



 
Exeter Local Development Framework Core Strategy 
 
CP2 - Employment 
CP9 - Transport 
CP12 - Flood Risk 
CP15 - Sustainable Construction 
CP17 - Design and Local Distinctiveness 
 
Exeter Local Plan First Review 1995-2011 
 
L1 - Valley Parks 
T3 - Encouraging Use of Sustainable Modes  
T10 - Car Parking Standards 
LS1 -  Landscape Setting 
LS4 - Local Nature Conservation Designation/RIGS 
EN3 - Air and Water Quality 
EN4 - Flood Risk 
DG1 - Objectives of Urban Design 
DG7 - Crime Prevention and Safety 
 

OBSERVATIONS 

 
The principle of a new railway halt at Matford/Marsh Barton is established within Core 
Strategy Policy CP9 as part of the comprehensive strategic transport measures to 
accommodate the additional development proposed for the city and adjoining areas. It is 
considered that the station is likely to operate principally as a destination for people travelling 
to workplaces in Marsh Barton and Matford and across the Valley Park to locations such as 
County Hall and the RD&E Hospital. The site is well connected with an extensive network of 
walking and cycling routes within the Valley Park, and along the Alphin Brook. Being a 
destination for most journeys rather than a point of origin, it is not considered likely to attract 
significant car-borne traffic. Parking provision is therefore limited to four spaces, plus a 
further two for disabled users, as well as a set of covered cycle stands on each side of the 
railway. A new footbridge with steps and full ramped access is proposed, as the existing 
Clapperbrook Lane road bridge does not provide a direct or wheelchair accessible route 
across the railway. 
 
Given the principle of the new station is acceptable it is the specific impact of the associated 
structure that needs to be assessed to ensure the successful integration of the facility within 
the surrounding area. The proposed station is located a significant distance away from 
residential properties, the closest being on the opposite side of the River Exe and therefore 
the station will not cause loss of residential amenity. The issue of lighting of the station, 
which can potentially have a visual impact over a wider area, has been assessed by the 
Environmental Health officer and it is not considered to have an adverse impact on nearby 
properties or businesses. However whilst the majority of the new platform and associated 
works will be located within railway operational land, the station will, in part be located in a 
Valley Park and Site of Nature Conservation Importance as designated within the Exeter 
Local Plan. It is therefore the physical and visual impact of the station within this area which 
needs to be addressed. 
 
The eastern platform, serving south bound trains (platform 1) is located with the Valley Park 
and a Site of Nature Conservation Importance. The platform and stairs/ramp will be located 
predominately on existing railway operational land however if will also result in the removal of 
an existing hedge. The visual quality of this hedge is considered poor and is sporadic in the 
area where the platform and ramp is to be located. Consequently the biodiversity benefit of 
the hedge is considered to be limited, which is an opinion supported by the accompanying 
Ecological Report and there is no objection to the removal of the hedge.  However the 
enhancement of the vehicular access serving this platform and the creation of six car parking 

Page 16



spaces will potentially have greater harm given it will involve the removal of a number of semi 
mature and mature trees on both sides of the access road. These trees do form an important 
linear area of mature planting which helps to screen the proposed application site from wider 
views and within the Valley Park. It is important that this wooded area is retained. The 
accompanying landscape plan does show that significant existing trees will be retained and 
new trees replanted. It is therefore considered that this established wooded area will 
continue to help screen the platform and the proposed ramp/stairs which will have a 
maximum height of 8 metres. Subject to a suitable landscape condition and associated 
maintenance management plan to ensure the continued presence of a tree screen it is 
considered that this side to the railway station would be effectively screened. 
 
The western platform, serving north bound trains (platform 2) is accessed from alongside the 
Energy from Waste plant, which is currently under construction. There is currently no 
pedestrian or vehicular access in this location and the area is largely overgrown with shrubs 
and several semi mature poplar trees. The application proposes the creation of a new 
pedestrian and emergency vehicle access, which would involve the removal of a significant 
area of this existing vegetation. This linear area of land increases in width from 
approximately 3 metres at its closest point adjacent to the junction of Clapperbrook Lane and 
Grace Road increasing to 25 metres adjacent to the proposed platform. Consequently in 
some areas the construction of the new access will be close to existing trees which are 
identified for retention. It is considered that the proximity of the proposed access will 
inevitably have an impact on these tree's future health. The potential for immediate or long 
term damage is further heightened by the changes in levels across this section of the site. It 
is important that trees continue to provide an attractive landscaped entrance into the Valley 
Park and also help to screen the new station. It is therefore considered that rather than 
attempting to retain some of the existing trees, as identified on the submitted landscape plan, 
a more realistic plan is produced which accepts that more existing trees will need to be 
removed. The existing trees are not considered worthy of preservation orders and given the 
narrowness of this part of this site, it is likely that they will be damaged during construction 
works in any case.  It is therefore considered that a suitable condition is imposed to include a 
mixture of container grown stock and whips and a maintenance management plan provided 
to ensure the continued presence of trees in this location. 
 
It is considered that the existing vegetation and proposed replanting will ensure that the 
structures associated with the station are effectively screened. Whilst the lower level facilities 
such as the platform, parking area, cycle racks and the waiting shelters would not be visible, 
the presence of landscaping is particularly important for the higher ramp, stairs and 
footbridge. It is however considered that the existing bridge over the railway will help to 
screen the new footbridge and the Energy from Waste facility will still continue to be the most 
dominant structure in the area and hide from of the station from public view on the Marsh 
Barton side. 
 
The submitted plan shows the pedestrian path serving platform 2 meeting the junction of 
Clapperbrook Lane and Grace Road. As previously stated it is considered that this area 
represents an important entrance into the Valley Park. As presented the proposed 
arrangement does not allow for further landscape enhancement opportunities which would 
be possible if this access layout was reconfigured. Accordingly given this entrance is highly 
visible, it is considered that this area should be redesigned to ensure the most appropriate 
integration of pedestrian, cyclist, vehicular and landscaping opportunity is achieved. 
 
In conclusion, it is considered that the facility is appropriate in policy terms and subject to 
suitable landscape and continued maintenance conditions being imposed the area would 
continue to be well screened from wider views and in particular from the Valley Park. 
Additional issues such as the Clapperbrook Lane/ Grace Road junction should be further 
investigated. In addition, it is considered that a condition should be imposed to ensure there 
is not excessive spillage from the proposed lighting for the station. It is also considered that a 
comment made that the construction of the works should not prejudice the potential for the 
supply of heat from the Energy from Waste Plant to meet the demand east of the River Exe, 

Page 17



as identified in the Exeter Energy Network Study and opportunities to facilitate this 
connection through the station and bridge design should be explored. 
 

WESTERN AREA WORKING PARTY 

 
30 April 2013 - Members were advised that the application from Devon County Council would 
be reported to Planning Committee. Members were broadly supportive of the proposed but 
commented on the need to ensure good access to existing pedestrian and cycle networks. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
That the City Council raise NO OBJECTION subject to conditions in respect of a revised 
landscape plan showing a complete replanting of the western side of the site and further 
consideration of the access arrangement from the Clapperbrook Lane/Grace Road junction. 
In addition, a comment should be made to ensure the future consideration of the need to 
facilitate connections in respect of District Energy Network. 
 
 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) 1985 (as amended). 
Background papers used in compiling the report: 
 
Files of planning applications available for inspection from the Customer Service Centre, 
Civic Centre, Paris Street, Exeter: Telephone 01392 265223 

 

Page 18



 
 
ITEM NO.  6 COMMITTEE DATE: 24/06/2013 
 
APPLICATION NO:   13/3207/26 DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL  

CONSULTATION 
APPLICANT: Devon County Council (Planning, Transportation and 

Enviroment) 
PROPOSAL:  Erection of a single platform railway station on the existing 

Exeter-Exmouth railway line with associated pedestrian, 
vehicular access and parking area and provision for a future 
underpass crossing 

LOCATION:  Newcourt Station, Old Rydon Lane, Exeter, EX2 
REGISTRATION DATE:  26/04/2013 
EXPIRY DATE: 24/05/2013 
 

1
6

3
2

3
5

3
9

4
0

28

5 1

4
3

5

1

1
0

2
8

2

2
2

3
0

J u tla n d

Ho u se

2

1
5

19

3
6

12

9

1
1

2

2
4

1

1
3

5

3
8

5

5
1

5
5

4
9

1

39

3
5 37 to 47

(odd
s)

44 to
 4

9

1
9

12

9

14

1  to
 6

5
2

4
6

3
6

5
8 t

o 6
8 (E

ven
)

443
1

2
7

1
7

2
6

1
9

1
1

5
0

1

2
5

20

2
6

2
6 

to
 33

2
 to

 2
4 (e

ve
n)

3
0

15
9

7

2

1

4

2
3

7

1
5

3

1
1

1

1 0

2

1

1
8

1
8

14

5

6

L
I B

E
R

T
Y

 W
A

Y

LG

MP 3

R
E

S O
L

U
TIO

N
 R

O
A

D

Carnegie Walk

ESS

P
a

th

O
M

A
H

A
 D

R
IV

E

RIV
ER

 P
LA

TE
 R

O
A

D

R
H

O
D

E IS
LAN

D
 D

RIVE

CARO LINE AVENUE

LIB
ERTY W

AY

B
AT

A
V

IA
 D

R
IV

E

R
O

B
ER

T
 D

AV
E

Y RO
AD

JU
TL

AN
D

 W
A

Y

J
A

C
K

 S
A

D
L

E
R

 W
A

Y

B
LAK

E
SLE

E
 D

R
IVE

 
Scale 1:3000 
This map is based on Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her 
Majesty’s Stationery Office B Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings. Exeter City Council 100049053 

 
DESCRIPTION OF SITE/PROPOSAL 
 
The application site (0.66 hectares) consists largely of existing railway operational land either 
side of the Exeter to Exmouth railway line which travels in a north to south direction. The new 
station would be positioned on the eastern side of Liberty Way and adjacent the public open 
space.  
 
The application is for a single platform railway station on a single track line. The station will 
be unstaffed, but fully accessible with waiting shelters, cycle racks, lighting, cctv and a Help 
Point/ Customer Information Service. In the future it is proposed to erect a new subway 
underneath the track to provide access for pedestrians and cyclists to an area which is 
identified in the Newcourt Masterplan for future development. The platform will be fully 
accessible, with both stepped and ramped access provided. 
 
The platforms will be 124 metres in length, sufficient to accommodate four carriage trains.  
 
The waiting shelter (containing a Help/Information Point) will measure 7.3 metres wide, 2 
metres deep and 2.5 metres high. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 19



 
A cycle storage shelter will be provided adjacent to the platform and will accommodate 20 
cycle stands. These will be covered cycle shelters and measure approximately 6.9 metres 
wide and 2 metres in height. This will be positioned alongside the entrance into the station. 
 
A total of 4 car parking spaces are to be provided for disabled badge holders only, adjacent 
to the station's entrance.  
 
An existing public footpath which lies adjacent to the railway will be diverted to be located in 
the open space between the new station and existing housing in Liberty Way which will be 
subject to a separate diversion order. 
 
Platform lighting will be mounted on 7 metre high columns. The lanterns will utilise high 
efficiency fluorescent lamps and use flat glass diffusers to minimise glare and overspill to 
surrounding areas. The access path and car park at the north end will be lit by an extension 
of the highway lighting on Liberty Way. No additional lighting is to be provided for the path 
from Jack Sadler Way. 
 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION SUPPLIED BY THE APPLICANT 
 
The application was accompanied by a Planning Statement which incorporated the Design 
and Access Statement, In addition, the following documents have been provided:-
Construction Traffic Management Plan,  Sustainability Statement; Ecology Report (Reptile 
and Dormouse Surveys including Phase 1 Survey Update); Tree Survey Report; Site Waste 
Management Plan; Geotechnical Interpretative Report and Landscape Design Proposals. 
 
The principle for the creation of a railway station at Newcourt is established in local and 
national planning policy, both of which seek to deliver sustainable transport options for local 
communities. The proposed railway station at Newcourt is supported by the Exeter Core 
Strategy CP19 and Exeter Local Plan Policy KP8 which seeks to improve rail facilities in the 
Newcourt area.  
 
Main benefits that will be delivered by the proposed scheme include: 
- Improve access to the Newcourt community and forthcoming employment areas. 
- Supporting significant levels of planned growth in the Devon area and supporting better 
access to employment and leisure opportunities for the local community. 
- Achieving the vision of the Devon Metro Project which is to provide a package of measures 
to improve rail services, including longer trains, increased frequency of some services and 
several new rail stations, including at Marsh Barton, Newcourt and Edginswell (Torquay). 
- A fully accessible station forecourt that enables full disabled access, cycle provision, waiting 
shelters, CCTV, customer information services and security lighting to maintain a safe user 
experience. 
- Achieving accordance with local and national planning policy which seeks to provide 
sustainable transport options for the Newcourt growth area and its current and future 
residents. 
 
Main impacts from the proposed scheme are:- 
 
Landscape - the proposal includes the removal of tree and shrubs in order to accommodate 
the proposal. To mitigate the vegetation loss, a landscaping scheme is proposed which 
includes the planting of additional trees and shrubs along the railway line and within the 
newly designed public open space. It is considered that the proposed planting mitigates 
against the loss of existing planting and therefore the proposed scheme is considered to 
have a slight adverse impact on the local landscape. 
 
Visual Impacts - it is considered that there would be moderate adverse visual impact on the 
nearby residential communities given the close proximity to the railway station and car parks. 

Page 20



The proposed planting scheme would help to reduce the visual impacts in the longer term as 
planting establishes. 
 
Heritage - it is considered that the proposal will not have any physical impacts on historic 
structures, archaeological features or palaeoenvironmental deposits. The Grade II listed 
building Newcourt House is located nearby but not considered affected by the proposals. 
 
Ecology - a Phase 1 Habitat Survey was undertaken in 2012 and identified the presence of 
two reptile species and the potential to disturb nesting birds during construction. It is 
considered that with appropriate mitigation in place, the proposal will not have any adverse 
effects on local ecology. 
 
Noise - it is anticipated that noise levels in the vicinity of the station will increase during 
construction and operation. However it is anticipated that the noise levels would not increase 
to levels significantly greater that those already generated by the existing railway line and the 
M5 motorway which is less than 250m to the east. 
 
Air Quality - it is considered that the proposal will have no adverse effect on the local air 
quality, and in fact, by encouraging a modal shift in transport habits, from the use of the 
motor vehicle to the train, a small improvement in air quality is anticipated locally. 
 
Flooding and Water Quality - the site is not located within any Flood Zones, however it is 
within a groundwater source protection zone, which could potentially be contaminated during 
construction. By ensuring best practice measures are in place, the risk of a pollution event is 
significantly reduced, ensuring local water quality is maintained. 
 
Contaminated land - ground investigations have been undertaken, and no evidence of 
significant contamination has been found at the site. 
 
Surrounding Amenity - there are residential properties within the vicinity of the site, to the 
west, however the location of the proposed station has been selected to minimise effects on 
these properties. They will not be directly overlooked by the station as it will be located 
adjacent to an area of amenity open space. No significant adverse effects on surrounding 
properties are therefore anticipated. 
 
PLANNING POLICIES/POLICY GUIDANCE 
 
Central Government Guidance: National Planning Policy Framework 
 
Section 4 - Promoting Sustainable Transport 
 
Exeter Local Development Framework Core Strategy 
 
CP9 - Transport 
CP15 - Sustainable Construction 
CP17 - Design and Local Distinctiveness 
CP18 - Infrastructure  
CP19 - Strategic Allocations 
 
Exeter Local Plan First Review 1995-2011 
 
KP8 - Newcourt Area 
H3 - Housing Sites 
T1 - Hierarchy of Modes 
T3 - Encouraging Use of Sustainable Modes  
T5 - Cycle Route Network 
T10 - Car Parking Standards 
LS1 -  Landscape Setting 

Page 21



EN5 - Noise 
DG1 - Objectives of Urban Design 
DG7 - Crime Prevention and Safety 
 
Newcourt Masterplan adopted November 2010 which in the transport section states that:- 
 
Rail use is considered to have the greatest potential to reduce the level of private car use at 
Newcourt. Land will be safeguarded for a new rail halt on the Exeter to Exmouth line within 
the Masterplan area. A new rail line crossing will be provided at this point. Pedestrian and 
cycle connections to the halt through the Masterplan area shall be provided. 
 

OBSERVATIONS 
 
Development Plan support for the provision of a new railway station in this location is 
contained within Policy CP19 of the Exeter Core Strategy, Policy KP8 of the Exeter Local 
Plan First Review  and the Newcourt Masterplan. The National Planning Policy Framework in 
paragraph 196 states that '... planning law requires that applications for planning permission 
must be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise.' Currently only the land west of the station is being developed, this being 
an expanding residential area which forms part of the Newcourt strategic allocation. Good 
permeability for pedestrians and cyclists means that the station will be easily accessible by 
these modes from a large number of homes. The station will also be within easy reach of the 
strategic cycling route and bus service in the area. It is not considered likely to attract car-
borne passengers, being relatively inaccessible by car from the wider road network. Parking 
provision is therefore limited to four spaces for disabled users, as well as a set of covered 
cycle stands. Devon County Council are proposing to upgrade the existing path parallel with 
the railway to provide an improved route to and from Sandy Park stadium, away from 
properties in Liberty Way.  The land on the eastern side of the railway also forms part of the 
strategic allocation, and Policy CP19 envisages a pedestrian and cycle crossing of the line. A 
subway rather than a bridge is proposed because of the difference in levels either side of the 
railway which would make the bridge visually intrusive. Although included in the planning 
application, the subway will not be constructed until the land on the eastern side of the 
railway is developed. Consequently given this context of conformity with the development 
plan, it is the site specific elements of the scheme which require further comment. 
 
The construction of the station will mainly be contained with the railway's operational land 
which is on the eastern side of the existing footpath adjacent to the track. However the extent 
of the platform, future subway and associated facilities will necessitate the loss of a number 
of existing trees. The removal of several existing oak trees and a large sycamore tree in this 
location is regrettable as they present an attractive feature within the immediate and wider 
surrounding area. However it is accepted that in operational terms this site is the most 
appropriate location for the new station and this supported by the relevant development plan 
policies. Accordingly it is important that the proposed replanting is substantial to compensate 
for this loss. The submitted landscape scheme shows replanting with a mixture of standard to 
extra standard silver birch and oak trees which are to be located within the existing open 
space. This level of planting is considered to provide sufficient cover in the future to 
compensate for the short term loss of existing trees. The landscape plan does indicate that 
some existing oak and silver birch trees will be retained adjacent to the main entrance into 
the station. It is important that these trees are safeguarded to ensure the successful 
integration of the facility into the area and provide a level of immediate screening of the 
station from residents living in Liberty Way. 
 
The character of the area is enhanced by the existing area of public open space located to 
the west of the proposed station. It is considered that the proposed tree planting will enhance 
the visual quality of the area and help to screen the facility from wider views. Accordingly any 
erosion of this open space should be carefully considered. It is accepted that an element of 
disabled parking is necessary for the station and this will be important to ensure the existing 
residents in the area, do not suffer from parking problems. However the proposed parking 

Page 22



area for four cars appear excessive, over-engineered and does not appear well integrated 
into the area. It is therefore considered that this area should be redesigned with a reduced 
footprint with appropriate landscaping and boundary treatment. As submitted the parking 
proposed would represent an unacceptable intrusion into this area of public open space. 
 
The location of the station has previously been identified in the Newcourt Masterplan which 
was adopted prior to the development of the existing houses, which are now occupied 
closest to the site. Accordingly residents in the immediate vicinity may have been aware a 
station would be built in the future in this location. However at the time of purchase no details 
of the station in terms of platform/ subway location, parking area, cycle shelters, lighting 
columns and footpath location would have been available and therefore it is important that 
residents do not suffer undue loss of amenity as a result of this detailed scheme. The 
proposed lighting has been assessed by the Environmental Health officer and considered to 
be acceptable given its relation to residential properties. It is considered that the proposed 
planting will help to minimise the visual impact of the station and as previously stated subject 
to the redesign of the parking area the character and appearance of the public open space 
will retained. In addition, the planting will beneficial to help mitigate the appearance of the 
station and associated lights when seen from wider views given its ridgeline location. In 
general, the construction of the station will not result in development coming closer to 
residential properties than the existing railway line. However the future construction of the 
subway will result in the loss of existing trees which as a group form an important landscape 
feature in the area. In addition, the diversion of the footpath will be relocated approximately 3 
metres closer to properties in Liberty Way. It is therefore important that significant planting is 
provided in this location. Whilst it is accepted that some replanting has already occurred in 
this location, it is considered that the submitted plans are insufficient in detail to ensure that 
an effective landscape screen will be maintained in the future. 
 
In summary, it is considered that the provision of substantial landscaping to compensate for 
the loss of existing mature vegetation will help to integrate the station within the area. This is 
considered important as the site can be viewed from wider areas to the east as well as from 
more immediate views from Liberty Way and Jack Sadler Way in particular. Details are 
required of the additional landscaping particularly adjacent to the proposed subway, the 
proposed surfacing and boundary treatments adjacent to the platform. Galvanised fencing 
would not acceptable in this location given the proximity to residential properties and 
therefore a powder coated fencing detail would be more appropriate. In addition, a redesign 
of the parking area is required. However subject to these matters being addressed the 
station would represent an acceptable scheme which is supported by development plan 
policies. 
 
WESTERN AREA WORKING PARTY 
 
5 June 2013 - Members were advised that the application from Devon County Council would 
be reported to Planning Committee with a recommendation of no objection subject to issues 
of details, particularly in relation to landscaping. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the City Council raise NO OBJECTION subject to a further detailed condition being 
imposed in respect of landscaping adjacent to the proposed subway and boundary treatment  
and a condition ensuring no public audible information system is provided. In addition a 
revision to the submitted parking layout is required. 
 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) 1985 (as amended). 
Background papers used in compiling the report: 
 
Files of planning applications available for inspection from the Customer Service Centre, 
Civic Centre, Paris Street, Exeter: Telephone 01392 265223 

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
ITEM NO.  7 COMMITTEE DATE: 24/06/2013 
 
APPLICATION NO:   13/3101/03 FULL PLANNING PERMISSION 
APPLICANT: Mr A Rapley 
PROPOSAL:  Erection of summer house in garden 
LOCATION:  Orchard Bungalow, Ludwell Lane, Exeter, EX2 5AQ 
REGISTRATION DATE:  17/04/2013 
EXPIRY DATE: 12/06/2013 

 

The Laurels

The Willows

Ludwell House

Orchard Bungalow

Long Combe

1
3

1 2

5
1

5
5

6
9

Swan Bungalow

C
S

Und

W
ard B dy

CR

15.8m

10.7m

No
rth
br
oo
k

P
a
th
 (
u
m
)

12.5m

LU
D
W
EL
L 
LA
N
E

13.1m

10.4m

C
H
E
S
T
N
U
T
 A
V
E
N
U
E

Ludwell Valley Park

C
S

Bo
ro
 C
on
st
, E
D
 &
 W
ar
d 
Bd
y

C
o 
C
o
n
st
 B
d
y

 
Scale 1:3000 
This map is based on Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her 
Majesty’s Stationery Office B Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings. Exeter City Council 100049053 

 
HISTORY OF SITE 

 
09/2052/03 -  Ground floor extension on north east and south 

west elevations 
PER 02/02/2010 

  
DESCRIPTION OF SITE/PROPOSAL 
 
Orchard Bungalow is a single storey detached property.  It is located to the north of Ludwell 
Lane and is within the Ludwell Valley Park and an area designated as a Site of Local Interest 
for Nature Conservation. A cycle route runs along Ludwell Lane.  Orchard Bungalow is set 
within a spacious site with a road frontage of some 80 metres.  The property is located in the 
northern corner of the site and is thus set well back from the Ludwell Lane which borders the 
site along the south western and south eastern boundaries. The property is accessed via a 
long single track drive which also serves a range of outbuildings located adjacent to the main 
house. The site has a gentle gradient from north to south.  
 
The proposal is for a summer house (3.5m x 4.5m x 2.43m in size). It will have timber tongue 
and groove walls with bitumen black shingles for the roof covering. It will be located approx. 
10m from the main house within the grounds of the property but within reasonable proximity 
of the main building and outbuildings.  
 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION SUPPLIED BY THE APPLICANT 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 25



Specification of the Summerhouse. 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
None received. 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
None received 
 
PLANNING POLICIES/POLICY GUIDANCE 
 
Central Government Guidance 
NPPF - National Planning Policy Framework 
 
 
Exeter Local Development Framework Core Strategy 
CP17 - Design and Local Distinctiveness 
 
 
Exeter Local Plan First Review 1995-2011 
DG4 - Residential Layout and Amenity 
DG1 - Objectives of Urban Design 
L1 - Valley Parks 
LS1 -  Landscape Setting 
 
 
Exeter City Council Supplementary Planning Document 
 
OBSERVATIONS 

 
Although located within the Valley Park and a Site of Local Interest for Nature Conservation 
the works proposed would not cause harm to them, their setting or to any mature trees 
located within this site. Policies L1 and LS4 have been given due consideration and it is not 
considered that there would be any detrimental impact upon the ecological, environmental 
and recreational value of the area.   
 
Policy DG1 of the Exeter Local Plan states that development should be compatible with the 
area within which it is located. It should promote the existing character, relate well to 
surrounding buildings and spaces and ensure that all designs promote local distinctiveness 
and contribute positively to the visual richness and amenity of the area. This is supported by 
Policy CP17 of the Core Strategy that requires all proposals to complement and enhance 
Exeter’s character and local identity. The proposal presented is a modest single storey 
building constructed in materials compatible with the setting. In compliance with Policy 
DG4(b) of the Exeter Local Plan, the proposal presented does not adversely impact on the 
quality of amenity currently enjoyed by neighbouring residential properties. 
 
For this reason the proposal is recommended for approval. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
APPROVE subject to the following conditions: 
 
1) C05  -  Time Limit - Commencement 
 
2) The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict 

accordance with the submitted details received by the Local Planning Authority on 
17 April 2013 (dwg. no(s). Plan 1, Plan 2, Plan 3, Plan 4, Plan 4 Continued), as 

Page 26



modified by other conditions of this consent. 
Reason:  In order to ensure compliance with the approved drawings. 

 
 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) 1985 (as amended). 
Background papers used in compiling the report: 
 
Files of planning applications available for inspection from the Customer Service Centre, 
Civic Centre, Paris Street, Exeter: Telephone 01392 265223 

 

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



M:/Acolaid/Committee Documents/Cover Page for Del Dec for Comm. Report 

EXETER CITY COUNCIL 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

24 JUNE 2013 

 

PLANNING DECISIONS AND WITHDRAWN APPLICATIONS 

 
1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 

1.1 This report lists planning applications determined and applications that have 
been withdrawn between the date of finalising the agenda of the last 
Planning Committee and the date of finalising this agenda. Applications are 
listed by ward. 
 

1.2 The latter part of the application reference number indicates the following 
type of application: 
01 Outline Planning Permission 
02 Approval of Reserved Matters 
03 Full Planning Permission 
04 Works to Tree(s) with Preservation Order 
05 Advertisement Consent 
06 Works to Tree(s) in Conservation Area 
07 Listed Building Consent 
08 Circular 18/84 
14 Demolition in Conservation Area 
16 Exeter City Council Regulation 3 
17 Lawfulness of Existing Use/Development 
18 Certificate of Proposed Use/Development 
21 Telecommunication Apparatus Determination 
25 County Matter Application 
26 Devon County Council Application 
27 Modification and Discharge of Planning Obligation Regulations 
37        Non Material Amendment 
38        Extension to Extant Planning Consent 
 

1.3 The decision type uses the following codes 
DTD    Declined To Determine 
NLU    Was Not Lawful Use 
PAN     Prior Approval Not Required 
PAR     Prior Approval Required 
PER Permitted 
REF Refuse Planning Permission 
RNO Raise No Objection 
ROB Raise Objections 
SPL Split Decision 
WDN Withdrawn by Applicant 
WLU Was Lawful Use 
WTD Withdrawn - Appeal against non-determination 
 

1.4  
 

Members are requested to advise the Senior Area Planning Officer (Roger 
Clotworthy) or Assistant Director City Development (Richard Short) of any 
questions on the schedule prior to the meeting of the Planning Committee. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION 

 
2.1 That this report be noted. 
 
RICHARD SHORT 

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR CITY DEVELOPMENT 

Agenda Item 8

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



Exeter City Council

All Planning Decisions Made and 

Withdrawn Applications Between 9/5/2013 and 12/6/2013

24/06/2013

13/3066/29Application Number: 29/04/2013Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 29/05/2013

Land south of Moonhill Copse West Clyst, ExeterLocation:

Erection of 35 dwellings (including up to 14 affordable units) access and 
associated infrastructure (all matters reserved except access)

Proposal:

Raise No ObjectionDecision Type DEL

ALPHINGTON

13/2654/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 09/05/2013

12 Wheatsheaf Way, Exeter, EX2 8RQLocation:

Porch on front elevationProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/0117/03Application Number: 26/03/2013Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 20/05/2013

Briars Cottage, Crabb Lane, Exeter, EX2Location:

Rebuilding of existing greenhouse and potting shedProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/0135/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 20/05/2013

Quay Climbing Centre, Haven Road, Exeter, EX2 8AXLocation:

First floor extension into redundant space of adjoining buildingProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/0158/03Application Number: 30/04/2013Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 20/05/2013

1 Ashton Road, Marsh Barton Trading Estate, Exeter, EX2 8LULocation:

Change of use from retail to retail and indoor play areaProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

Page 1 of 19 Page 31



13/3029/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 20/05/2013

Westerly, Matford Park Road, Marsh Barton Trading Estate, Exeter, EX2 8FDLocation:

Variation of condition two to approve amended drawings for revised layout (Ref 
no. 12/0462/03 granted 26-06-2012)

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/2949/03Application Number: 30/04/2013Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 21/05/2013

Unit 7, Stone Lane Retail Park, Marsh Barton Road, Marsh Barton Trading 
Estate, Exeter, EX2 8LH

Location:

Variation of condition 12 to allow the sale of all non food goods (Ref 91/0292/03 
granted 22-05-91)

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/3034/37Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 22/05/2013

Land off Balls Farm Road, Exeter, EX2Location:

Change of hip roofs to gable ends (Non Material Minor Amendment for Planning 
Permission Ref No. 11/0858/03 granted 22 February 2012)

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/2903/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 24/05/2013

Land adjacent to Lidl site, Clapper Brook Lane, Exeter, EX2Location:

Variation of condition two and three to allow a revised layout and storage and 
distribution use (Ref 01/1656/03 granted 15-01-2002)

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/3010/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 24/05/2013

Lidl Supermarket, Powlesland Road, Alphington, Exeter, EX2 8TTLocation:

Single storey side extension to create ancillary space and partial re-claddingProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/3119Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 30/05/2013

Land adj. to Maclaines Warehouse, Haven Road, Exeter, EX2 8GRLocation:

Large wall signs (3) and small wall signs (4)Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

Page 2 of 19 Page 32



13/3114/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 05/06/2013

McDonalds, Unit 8 Stone Lane Retail Park, Marsh Barton Road, Marsh Barton 
Trading Estate, Exeter, EX2 8LH

Location:

Reconfiguration of access points, drive thru lane and car park and installation of 
two customer order displays with canopies

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/3166/06Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 05/06/2013

70 Church Road, Alphington, Exeter, EX2 8TALocation:

Tree No    Species                   Works
T1             Lawson Cypress     Fell

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/0253/03Application Number: 30/04/2013Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 09/05/2013

Unit 6, Cranmere Court, Lustleigh Close, Marsh Barton Trading Estate, Exeter, 
EX2 8PW

Location:

Change of use from office to office and non residential institutionProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/2983/18Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 09/05/2013

65 Hatherleigh Road, Exeter, EX2 9JZLocation:

Proposed single storey rear extension.Proposal:

Was lawful useDecision Type DEL

13/2964/06Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 13/05/2013

2 Bate Close, Alphington, Exeter, EX2 8USLocation:

Tree  Species               Work
H1  Thorn/Elm hedge  Reduce to 2m 
T1  Oak                       Cut overhanging branches back to boundary 
T2  Oak                        Pollard to height of shed

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

COWICK

13/3044/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 16/05/2013

146 Newman Road, Exeter, EX4 1PHLocation:

Ground floor rear extensionProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

Page 3 of 19 Page 33



13/2812/38Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 28/05/2013

Little Pocombe, Pocombe Bridge, Exeter, EX2 9SXLocation:

Detached two storey triple garage in north garden area (Extension of time for 
extant planning permission 05/0384/03 approved 27 April 2005 and 10/0096/38 
approved 26 March 2010)

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

DURYARD

13/3025/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 14/05/2013

22 Streatham Drive, Exeter, EX4 4PDLocation:

Two storey extension on front elevationProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/2760/03Application Number: 25/03/2013Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 07/06/2013

Land to the rear of Geoffrey Pope Building, Stocker Road, Exeter, EX4 4QDLocation:

Living Systems Research Building containing wet and dry laboratories, offices 
and seminar/meeting spaces and links to Geoffrey Pope Building and Physics 
Building

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

HEAVITREE

13/3028/06Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 20/05/2013

130 Fore Street, Heavitree, Exeter, EX1 2RSLocation:

Tree No          Species                       Works
T1     Leyland Cypress           Fell

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/3330/06Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 21/05/2013

12 Salutary Mount, Heavitree, Exeter, EX1 2QELocation:

Felling of one ash tree in rear garden (adjacent to boundary with 14 Salutary 
Mount)

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/3204/04Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 05/06/2013

Heavitree Park, Exeter, EX1Location:

Tree No  Species         Works
T1           Robina         Reduce in height by 50%
T2           Ash              Shorten lower primary branch by 3m
T3           Sycamore     Reduce outer stem by 50%

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

Page 4 of 19 Page 34



13/2808/03Application Number: 01/05/2013Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 13/05/2013

Blessed Sacrament Church, 29 Fore Street, Heavitree, Exeter, EX1 2QJLocation:

Widening of existing vehicle accessProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

MINCINGLAKE

13/0206/20Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 15/05/2013

Goffin Way, Land south of Probus Stud Farm, Church Hill, Pinhoe, Exeter, EX4Location:

Two agricultural barnsProposal:

Prior Approval Not RequiredDecision Type DEL

13/2872/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 16/05/2013

Wilkies Food Store, 92-98, Beacon Lane, Exeter, EX4 8LULocation:

Replacement automated entrance door and two shop front windowsProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/2966/05Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 16/05/2013

92-98 Beacon Lane, Exeter, EX4 8LULocation:

Externally illuminated fascia sign, non illuminated and internally illuminated 
projecting signs, poster cases (3) and window vinyls (8)

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/2975/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 16/05/2013

92-98 Beacon Lane, Exeter, EX4 8LULocation:

Alterations to outer building including installation of lift and stairsProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/0211/03Application Number: 29/04/2013Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 21/05/2013

Cheynegate Cottage, Cheynegate Lane, Exeter, EX4 9HZLocation:

Replacement dwelling with detached garage, relocation of bridleway and change 
of use of land from agriculture to domestic garden

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

Page 5 of 19 Page 35



13/2931/16Application Number: 03/06/2013Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 03/06/2013

Open Space, Bennett Square, Exeter, EX4Location:

Erection of two new residential terraces each containing three 3-bedroom houses 
plus car parking and access.

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

NEWTOWN

13/2800/03Application Number: 01/05/2013Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 16/05/2013

1-16 Magdalen Cottages, Magdalen Road, Exeter, EX2 4SXLocation:

Rebuilding of rear extensionsProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/2801/07Application Number: 01/05/2013Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 16/05/2013

1-16 Magdalen Cottages, Magdalen Road, Exeter, EX2 4SXLocation:

Demolition and rebuilding of rear extensions and internal alterationsProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/2806/03Application Number: 01/05/2013Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 20/05/2013

30 Portland Street, Exeter, EX1 2EQLocation:

Change of use from dwelling (Class C3) to House in Multiple Occupation (Class 
C4)

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/2911/05Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 21/05/2013

O/S 181 Sidwell Street, Exeter, EX4 6RELocation:

One double advertising panel including one static advert on the outside and three 
scrolling adverts on the inside of bus shelter

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

PENNSYLVANIA

13/2907/03Application Number: 29/04/2013Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 17/05/2013

84 Union Road, Exeter, EX4 6HTLocation:

Decking in rear garden.Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

Page 6 of 19 Page 36



13/2908/18Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 17/05/2013

84 Union Road, Exeter, EX4 6HTLocation:

Erection of timber building in rear garden.Proposal:

Was lawful useDecision Type DEL

13/2783/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 20/05/2013

7 Clevedon Close, Exeter, EX4 6HQLocation:

Extension to balconyProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/3160/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 07/06/2013

67 Florida Drive, Exeter, EX4 5EXLocation:

Lower ground floor extension.Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

PINHOE

13/2857/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 21/05/2013

65 Langaton Lane, Exeter, EX1 3SPLocation:

Raising of roof and alterations to outbuilding to create office accommodation.Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/3026/38Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 05/06/2013

57 Harrington Lane, Exeter, EX4 8NYLocation:

Replacement detached double garage, two storey extension on south elevation 
and ground floor extension on east elevation (Renewal of Planning Permission 
10/0413/03 granted 13 May 2010).

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

12/1295/03Application Number: 10/12/2012Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 06/06/2013

Land adj, Cotmead, 58 Langaton Lane, Exeter, EX1 3SLLocation:

Two semi detached dwellings with detached garages and associated worksProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

Page 7 of 19 Page 37



13/3437/37Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 07/06/2013

Former Ibstock Brickworks Site, land off Harrington Lane, Exeter, EX4 8DTLocation:

Moving electricity substation 5m west of nearest building (Non Material Minor 
Amendment for Planning Permission Ref No.11/1800/03 granted 4 July 2012)

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/3076/03Application Number: 03/06/2013Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 10/06/2013

43 Chancel Lane, Exeter, EX4 8PZLocation:

Ground floor rear extensionProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/0236/05Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 13/05/2013

Land off, Hill Barton Road, Exeter, EX1Location:

Non illuminated hoardingProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/2927/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 14/05/2013

17 Fairview Terrace, Exeter, EX1 3SQLocation:

Ground floor extension to rear tenementProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

POLSLOE

13/2852/03Application Number: 01/05/2013Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 17/05/2013

101 Pinhoe Road, Exeter, EX4 7HULocation:

Change of use from small house in multiple occupation (Class C4) to large house 
in multiple occupation (sui generis) (7 bedrooms)

Proposal:

Refuse Planning PermissionDecision Type DEL

13/3011/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 04/06/2013

46 Hamlin Lane, Exeter, EX1 2SDLocation:

Single storey lean-to extension on side elevation.Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

PRIORY

Page 8 of 19 Page 38



13/0132/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 09/05/2013

Wonford House Hospital, Dryden Road, Exeter, EX2 5AFLocation:

Portable buildingsProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/2895/03Application Number: 01/05/2013Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 21/05/2013

206 Topsham Road, Exeter, EX2 6AALocation:

Change of use from Retail ( A1 ) to Tattooist ( Sui Generis ) in addition to Retail ( 
A1 )

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type COM

13/3005/03Application Number: 01/05/2013Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 24/05/2013

41 Wonford Street, Exeter, EX2 5DQLocation:

Detached dwelling, alterations to access and associated worksProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/2928/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 04/06/2013

3 Wear Barton Road, Exeter, EX2 7EHLocation:

Erection of garage & ground floor extensionProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/3045/07Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 05/06/2013

41 Wonford Street, Exeter, EX2 5DQLocation:

Demolition of garageProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/3074/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 06/06/2013

Countess Wear House, Countess Wear Road, Exeter, EX2 6LRLocation:

Swimming pool, hot tub and sauna within courtyardProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

Page 9 of 19 Page 39



13/3075/07Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 06/06/2013

Countess Wear House, Countess Wear Road, Exeter, EX2 6LRLocation:

Swimming pool, hot tub and sauna within courtyardProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/3086/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 11/06/2013

3 Ellards Close, Exeter, EX2 6AHLocation:

Conservatory on rear elevationProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/2765/03Application Number: 01/05/2013Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 09/05/2013

3 The Barton, Mill Road, Exeter, EX2 6LJLocation:

Detached dwelling, parking and associated worksProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/2894/07Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 14/05/2013

Wonford House Hospital, Dryden Road, Exeter, EX2 5AFLocation:

New partitions to create single bedrooms with en suites for Haldon UnitProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

ST DAVIDS

13/0153/03Application Number: 29/04/2013Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 15/05/2013

32-33 Gandy Street, Exeter, EX4 3LTLocation:

Change of use from pavement to outside seating area  for 4 tables and 8 chairs.Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/0215/03Application Number: 30/04/2013Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 16/05/2013

88 South Street, Exeter, EX1 1EQLocation:

Change of use from shop/financial and professional services to restaurant and 
installation of extraction system

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

Page 10 of 19 Page 40



13/0241/03Application Number: 30/04/2013Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 20/05/2013

5 Cathedral Yard, Exeter, EX1 1HJLocation:

Change of use from highway to outdoor seating for 6 tables and 24 chairsProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/2843/07Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 20/05/2013

6 Little Silver, Exeter, EX4 4HULocation:

Alterations to window and doors on rear elevation and internal alterations to attic 
room

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/2940/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 20/05/2013

82 South Street, Exeter, EX1 1BZLocation:

Change of use from financial and professional services to sun bed shopProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/3220/05Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 21/05/2013

8 Guildhall Shopping Centre, Exeter, EX4 3HPLocation:

Internally illuminated fascia sign on rear elevationProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

12/1364/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 22/05/2013

88 Queen Street, Exeter, EX4 3RPLocation:

Change of use from pavement to outside seatingProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/3302/05Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 23/05/2013

234 High Street, Exeter, EX4 3NLLocation:

Internally illuminated A0 landscape internal window poster.Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

Page 11 of 19 Page 41



12/1125/16Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 24/05/2013

13 West View Terrace, Exeter, EX4 3BPLocation:

Render on gable and rear elevationProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/2971/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 04/06/2013

234 High Street, Exeter, EX4 3NLLocation:

Replacement / installation of external air conditioning units to areas of flat roof at 
second and third floor levels

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/3055/03Application Number: 03/06/2013Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 05/06/2013

The Firs, Queens Terrace, Exeter, EX4 4HRLocation:

Ground floor rear extensionProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/3131/07Application Number: 04/06/2013Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 07/06/2013

9 Southernhay West, Exeter, EX1 1JGLocation:

Internal alterations to ground floorProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/2819/07Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 09/05/2013

Easton Buildings, Little Castle Street, Exeter, EX4 3PXLocation:

Louvre panel on Bailey Street elevationProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/2948/06Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 09/05/2013

Exbridge House, 39 Commercial Road, ExeterLocation:

Tree Species Works
T1 Alder Fell

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

Page 12 of 19 Page 42



13/2803/07Application Number: 26/03/2013Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 13/05/2013

Palace Gate House, Palace Gate, Exeter, EX1 1HXLocation:

Internal alterations and replacement windows (3) for use as the Bishop's officesProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/2813/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 13/05/2013

Former Red Cow Inn, Red Cow Village, Exeter, EX4Location:

Variation of condition two to approve amended plans for internal alterations and 
revised window locations for studio flats (Ref No 12/0354/03 granted 21-06-2012)

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/2870/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 14/05/2013

25 King Street, Exeter, EX1 1DGLocation:

Replace a window with a door for mobility scooter access.Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

ST JAMES

13/2998/06Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 16/05/2013

15 Devonshire Place, Exeter, EX4 6JALocation:

Tree       Species       Works
T1          Thuja          Crown lift to 5m. Removal of two limbs at 5m and 6m above 
ground and
                                  removal of secondary branches.

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/3040/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 17/05/2013

15 Edgerton Park Road, Exeter, EX4 6DDLocation:

Two storey rear extensionProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/2762/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 21/05/2013

9 Thornton Hill, Exeter, EX4 4NNLocation:

Replacement garage with first floor store / office and dormer window to rear 
elevation of dwelling

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

ST LEONARDS

Page 13 of 19 Page 43



13/3183/37Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 16/05/2013

11 Matford Avenue, Exeter, EX2 4PWLocation:

Various amendments to small windows on ground floor, dormer window, first 
floor double doors, suntunnels and landscaping (Non Material Minor 
Amendments to Planning Permission Ref No. 12/0859/03 granted 24 September 
2012)

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/0123/26Application Number: 26/02/2013Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 20/05/2013

St Leonards Church of England Primary School, St. Leonards Road, Exeter, EX2 
4NQ

Location:

Remodelling and extending some existing classrooms and school hall, new 
stand-alone single storey 8 classroom block and resurfacing existing MUGA with 
associated access routes

Proposal:

Raise No ObjectionDecision Type DEL

13/2932/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 20/05/2013

28 St. Leonards Avenue, Exeter, EX2 4DLLocation:

First floor rear extensionProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/2926/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 21/05/2013

7 West Grove Road, Exeter, EX2 4LULocation:

Dormer on rear elevationProposal:

Refuse Planning PermissionDecision Type DEL

13/2985/04Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 21/05/2013

Matworthy, Deepdene Park, Exeter, EX2 4PHLocation:

Tree    Species              Work
T1       Norway Maple   Fell
T2 -6   Norway Maple   Remove dead wood over 25mm and broken branches

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/2946/07Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 24/05/2013

1 Claremont Grove, Exeter, EX2 4LYLocation:

Demolition of greenhouseProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

Page 14 of 19 Page 44



13/3124/06Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 28/05/2013

Park, Mount Radford Crescent, Exeter, EX2Location:

Tree No    Species    Works
T1             Oak          Fell

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/0172/03Application Number: 30/04/2013Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 13/05/2013

1 Magdalen Gardens, Exeter, EX2 4TYLocation:

Alterations and extension to existing dwelling to include three storey infill 
extension to front and addition of new roof to provide additional accommodation 
(revised scheme)

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/2772/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 13/05/2013

11 Barnardo Road, Exeter, EX2 4NDLocation:

Ground floor extension to side and rear elevationsProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/2828/03Application Number: 30/04/2013Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 13/05/2013

42 Fairpark Road, Exeter, EX2 4HLLocation:

Ground floor extension, stairs to garden and juliet balcony on rear elevationProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

ST LOYES

13/3181/04Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 05/06/2013

Yonder Dryways, Woodwater Lane, Exeter, EX2 5AJLocation:

Tree No         Species                    Work
T1    Common Lime          Re-pollarding to give an approximate reduction of 10%
T2    Sycamore                  Re-pollarding to give an approximate reduction of 
10%

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/2915/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 07/06/2013

11 Aspen Close, Exeter, EX2 5RZLocation:

Extension to existing garage.Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

ST THOMAS

Page 15 of 19 Page 45



13/0144/03Application Number: 30/04/2013Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 10/05/2013

4 St.Thomas Centre, Exeter, EX4 1DGLocation:

Change of use from retail to cafe/restaurant and hot food takeawayProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/0148/03Application Number: 30/04/2013Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 10/05/2013

3 St.Thomas Centre, Exeter, EX4 1DGLocation:

Change of use from retail to cafe/restaurant and hot food takeawayProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

TOPSHAM

13/3039/06Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 21/05/2013

Old Strand House, 41 The Strand, Topsham, Exeter, EX3 0AYLocation:

Tree No     Species       Works
T1 Lime Prune and crown lift to create 5.2m clearance over roadway and 
shorten                                            back by 1.5m
T2 Lime Crown lift by 1 - 1.25m

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/3001/07Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 22/05/2013

56 Fore Street, Topsham, Exeter, EX3 0HWLocation:

Non illuminated fascia signProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/2877/07Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 24/05/2013

27 White Street, Topsham, Exeter, EX3 0AELocation:

Demolish conservatory and replace with ground floor rear extension, roof lights 
(3), internal alterations to layout and conversion of outbuilding to utility

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/2878/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 24/05/2013

27 White Street, Topsham, Exeter, EX3 0AELocation:

Replacement ground floor rear extension and  roof lights (3)Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

Page 16 of 19 Page 46



13/3041/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 04/06/2013

21 Rydon Lane, Exeter, EX2 7ANLocation:

Conservatory on the rear elevationProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/3367/38Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 06/06/2013

Waterline, Ferry Road, Topsham, Exeter, EX3Location:

Ground floor extension to garage/boat store/workshop, relocation of summer 
house, external staircase and associated works (Extension of time for extant 
Planning Permission Ref No. 10/0546/38 granted 1 June 2010).

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/2961/05Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 07/06/2013

56 Fore Street, Topsham, Exeter, EX3 0HWLocation:

Non illuminated fascia signProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/3159/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 07/06/2013

10 Rydon Lane, Exeter, EX2 7AWLocation:

Conversion of 2 existing garages into habitable accommodation and the erection 
of a new garage.

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/3210/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 07/06/2013

14 Monmouth Avenue, Topsham, Exeter, EX3 0AFLocation:

Ground floor rear and side extension, pitched roof above garage and 
replacement windows.

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/0232/04Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 09/05/2013

Newport Caravan Park, Exeter Road, Topsham, Exeter, EX3Location:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

Page 17 of 19 Page 47



Tree Species Works
T2 Horse Chestnut Lift crown by 1.5m over entrance
T18-T20 Sycamore Remove epicormic growth 
T27 Poplar Remove one ring of branches to 6m
T31 Ash Lift crown by 2m
T40-T41 Lime Remove low branches to west over car wash area
T42 Oak Lift crown by 1.5m
T52 Sycamore Remove 2 low limbs over path to 4m
T54 Sycamore Fell
T66 Ash Remove small low branches to 5m
T68 Ash Remove low limb to Northeast and clear telephone 
pole
T78 Beech Remove low branches to West to 6m
T79 Lime Remove 2 low branches to west and southwest to 6m
T86 Holm Oak Lift crown by 1m
T87 Lime Lift crown by 2m
T88 Holm Oak Lift crown by 1.5m to Southwest 
T89 Lime Lift crown to 2m
T90 Oak Remove all epicormic growth
T91 Acer Lift crown by 1m and thin crown by 15%
T92 Birch Remove low branches to 5m
T102 Hornbeam Lift crown over 19 First Avenue by 1.5m
T104 Sycamore Lift crown away from bus stop and remove low limb to 
east to rebalance
T105-T106Ash Remove broken branches
T108 Oak Lift crown over main road by 1.5m
T113 Sycamore Lift crown to reduce shading by 1.5m
T114 Sycamore Fell
T116 Oak Remove epicormic growth, ivy and deadwood
Woodland Horse Chestnut Lift crown over old entrance adjacent to Plant 
Galore

Proposal:

13/2919/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 13/05/2013

Land north of, Old Rydon Lane, Exeter, EX2Location:

Variation of condition two to approve amended drawings for plot 11 and inclusion 
of sub station to the north of the site (Ref 07/2169/01 granted 17-05-2010)

Proposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/2924/05Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 13/05/2013

Land north of Old Rydon Lane, Exeter, EX2Location:

Two freestanding panelsProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

13/2904/03Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 14/05/2013

65 High Street, Topsham, Exeter, EX3 0DYLocation:

First floor rear extensionProposal:

PermittedDecision Type DEL

WHIPTON BARTON

Page 18 of 19 Page 48



13/3374/18Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 06/06/2013

R/O, 105 Sweetbrier Lane, Exeter, EX1 3APLocation:

Rear dormer and hip-to-gable extension.Proposal:

Was lawful useDecision Type DEL

13/3132/18Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 12/06/2013

104 Whipton Barton Road, Exeter, EX1 3PNLocation:

Certificate of Lawfulness of one and two storey extensions and dormer window 
on rear elevation.

Proposal:

Was lawful useDecision Type DEL

13/3033/37Application Number: Working Party Date:

Decision Date: 09/05/2013

Land off, Hill Barton Road, Exeter, EX1Location:

Amendment to Plot 3 from approved house type H408 to house type T322 and 
for Plots 13 and 33 replacement of house type H526 to a revised version re-titled 
H546 (Non Material Minor Amendment for planning Permission Ref No. 
12/0666/02 granted 19 October 2012)

Proposal:

Refuse Planning PermissionDecision Type DEL

Total Number of Decisions Made:

Local Government (Access to Information) 1985 (as amended)
Background papers used in compiling the report:
Files of Planning Applications available for inspection from:
Planning Services, Exeter City Council, Civic Centre, Paris Street, Exeter EX1 1NN
Telephone No: 01392 265223 

107

Page 19 of 19 Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



EXETER CITY COUNCIL 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

24 JUNE 2013 

 

ENFORCEMENT PROGRESS REPORT 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To update Members on enforcement matters. 
 
2.0 CASES OPENED AND CLOSED BETWEEN 25 FEBRUARY 2013 AND 28 

MAY 2013. 
 
Cases opened: 19 
Cases closed: 10 
Outstanding number of cases: 86 

 

3.0 NOTICES ISSUED   
 
3.1 None. 
  
4.0 NOTICES COMPLIED WITH   
 
4.1 None. 
 
5.0 CURRENT APPEALS   
 

5.1 ENF/12/4 – 4 Dart Walk, Exeter – Enforcement Notice issued on 11 February 
2013 against the removal of two “up and over” garage doors on the western 
elevation of the double garage and their replacement with French windows.  
The Notice took effect on 21 March 2013 and gave a period of three months 
for compliance. 

 
5.2 An Enforcement Notice appeal was submitted on 20 March 2013 and is being 

dealt with by written representations.  A date for the Inspector’s site visit is 
awaited. 

 
6.0 ENFORCEMENT APPEAL DECISIONS   
 
6.1 None. 
 
7.0 OTHER ISSUES   
 
7.1  ENF/11/87 – Former Showman Public House, 54 Cowick Street, Exeter  - A 

number of complaints have been received by the Local Planning Authority 
over the last eighteen months regarding refurbishment works taking place at 
the premises and detrimental effect of the graffiti upon the character and 
appearance of the grade II listed building and the surrounding Conservation 
Area. 

 
7.2 The Council entered into discussions with the new leaseholder of the 

premises in October last year with a view to formalising the proposed new 
use of the building and improving the external appearance.  Works 
commenced in February 2013 to remove the graffiti on the exterior of the 

Agenda Item 9

Page 51



premises and was completed in April 2013.  It is anticipated that the premises 
will open as a restaurant and takeaway in the near future; a planning 
application for the takeaway use has been submitted to the Council. 

  

  
Before After 

 
7.3 ENF/11/58 – 19 New North Road, Exeter – The trial of the two defendants 

responsible for the removal of two copper beech trees located within the St 
David’s Conservation Area commenced on 18 March 2013 at the Exeter 
Crown Court.  The trial was expected to last for two days. 

 
7.4 The Judge raised concerns that the two defendants had not provided any 

expert evidence in support of their case.  Further, the Judge did not consider 
that sufficient time had been allocated to the trial, as matters may be more 
complex as the defendants do not have legal representation. 

 
7.5 The Judge adjourned the trial in order that the defendants may have the 

opportunity to obtain expert evidence in support of their case.  The trial will 
now commence on 25 November 2013 and is expected to last for five days. 

 

8.0 RECOMMENDATION   
 
8.1 That this report be noted. 
 
RICHARD SHORT 
ASSISTANT DIRECTOR CITY DEVELOPMENT 

 
Local Government (Access to Information) 1985 (as amended). 
Background papers used in compiling the report:  none. 

 

Page 52



Agenda Item 10

Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



EXETER CITY COUNCIL 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
24 JUNE 2013 

 

APPEAL DECISIONS 

 

 

1.  SUMMARY 
 

Three appeal decisions have been received since the last report. All were dismissed. 
 
Oak Close, North Street, Heavitree, Exeter 
 
Reference No: 12/0572/03 
Proposal: Erection of a feather edged fence on top of a brick wall 
Application Decision:  Delegated refusal 
Type of Appeal: Written Representations 
Appeal Decision: Dismissed 
 
Grounds: 
The main issue was whether the proposal would preserve or enhance the character or 
appearance of the Heavitree Conservation Area. 
 
The appeal related to a terraced house within the Conservation Area. The front garden 
has a low brick wall, behind which additional timber fencing and a timber door have 
been erected to screen views of the site from the pavement outside, which 
accommodates a bus-stop and public litter bin. Retrospective permission was sought 
for this fencing. 
 
The Inspector considered the significance of this part of the Conservation Area to be 
associated with the linear pattern of development along North Street. Although housing 
in the street was of mixed design and appearance, there were also stretches of 
relatively consistent terraced housing facing North Street. The terraced houses on the 
western side of the road, including the appeal property, were characterised by 
frontages which featured a low brick wall behind which there was either vegetation or 
open areas. 
 
The Inspector noted that the appeal property was the only house within the terrace that 
had a timber fence at this height along the pavement frontage. The effect of the fencing 
was to change the way in which the front garden of the appeal property was read when 
viewed from the street. By virtue of the height of the fence and the introduction of 
timber into the street scene, the frontage of the house was more reminiscent of an 
enclosed rear garden. As such, it did not reflect the appearance of the other terraced 
properties facing North Street. 
 
The Inspector appreciated the Council’s concern that approval of this proposal, which 
would change the character of this side of the road, could be used in support of similar 
schemes. He considered this to be not a generalised fear of precedent, but a realistic 
and specific concern. The impact of high fences being erected along the front 
boundaries of other properties on this side of North Street would interfere with the 
existing pattern of low walls which are characteristic of this area, thereby causing harm 
to the Conservation Area. Allowing this appeal would make it difficult to resist further 
planning applications for similar developments, and their cumulative effect would 
exacerbate the harm  

Agenda Item 11

Page 113



 
As the Inspector considered the harm would be less than substantial the harm needed 
to be weighed against any public benefits associated with the development as advised 
in the NPPF. Although the fence improved privacy and security and helped to prevent 
littering of the front garden these were not public benefits and were therefore unable to 
outweigh concerns about the effect of the fence on the appearance of the Conservation 
Area.  
 
The Inspector concluded that the proposal would not preserve or enhance the 
character or appearance of the Conservation Area contrary to DSP Policy CO6 and 
ELP Policy DG1 which seek high standards of design. The proposal would also be in 
conflict with the overarching principle of the NPPF to protect the historic environment. 
The harm to the heritage asset would be less than substantial but this harm would not 
be outweighed by public benefits.  
 
The River Church, Northernhay Street 
 
Reference No: 12/1074/03 
Proposal: Replacement entrance doors 
Type of Appeal: Written Representations 
Appeal Decision: Dismissed 
 
Grounds: 
The main concern was the effect upon the character and appearance of the building, 
which is identified within the Exeter Local Plan (LP) as a Building of Local Importance; 
and whether the proposal would preserve or enhance the character and appearance of 
the St. David’s Conservation Area (CA).  
 
The appeal premises comprise a Victorian chapel, which has a three leaf entrance door 
with a multi-paned fanlight above. It forms part of the architectural significance of the 
locally important building and makes a pleasing contribution to the architectural quality 
and appearance of the CA. Whilst the provisions of the Equality Act 2010, (which 
requires a landlord to provide reasonable adjustment to their buildings to enable 
access to all) and the Public Sector Equality Duty under section 149 of the Equality Act 
2010 were taken into consideration, it was concluded that the proposed replacement 
glass doors would have resulted in the loss of an important part of the original fabric of 
the building. This would diminish the architectural quality and erode the integrity of a 
building. The replacement doors, with a large expanse of glass, would also contrast 
awkwardly with the proportions and detailing of the host building. It would disturb the 
largely unaltered roadside elevation of a building which is prominent in the street and 
detract from its pleasing contribution to the CA. The proposal would conflict with the 
provisions of the development plan which are aimed at safeguarding the qualities of the 
CA and the architectural or historic value of the Building of Local Importance. The 
benefits of replacement glass doors would not have outweighed the harm and therefore 
the appeal did not succeed. 
 
Southlands, Fore Street, Heavitree 
 
Reference Nos: 12/0605/03 & 12/0606/07 
Proposal: Ground floor extension on north west elevation and two storey extension on 
the north east elevation 
Type of Appeals: Written representations 
Appeal Decisions: Dismissed 
 
 

Page 114



Grounds: 
Two issues were of concern relating to this application: firstly, whether the proposals 
would preserve the Grade II listed building, its setting and any features of special 
architectural or historic interest; whether it would preserve the setting of the adjacent 
Grade II listed buildings at 1 Bicton Place and 8 Mont Le Grand and preserve the 
character and appearance of the Mont Le Grand Conservation Area (CA) and; 
secondly, the effect upon the living conditions of neighbouring residents, having 
particular regard to the outlook of the occupiers of 15 Southlands and the outlook and 
light of the occupiers of 1 Bicton Place. 
 
The significance of Southlands lies primarily in its architectural fabric as well as its 
historical associations with the local builder/architect William Hooper. Nevertheless, the 
remaining garden area typifies its high class suburban origins and assists in 
maintaining a sense of spaciousness around this nationally important building. It sets 
Southlands apart from 8 Mont Le Grand and 1 Bicton Place whilst also forming part of 
their setting. It was noted in the Inspector’s report that the appellants’ architect had 
given thoughtful consideration to the design of the proposed scheme, but even so the 
proposed two storey extension would have been very close to the boundary with 1 
Bicton Place. As such it would have significantly eroded the garden space between the 
two listed buildings seriously diminishing the sense of spaciousness, impacting on both 
the listed buildings and the CA. Whilst the scheme would change the outlook from the 
windows of neighbouring properties the combination of distance and height would have 
avoided any overbearing impact for the occupiers, harmful overlooking or loss of light. 
It would have been unlikely to result in any harm to other residents. Even so, whilst 
living conditions would not be significantly harmed they did not outweigh the harm to 
the heritage assets and the appeals did not therefore succeed. 
 
2.  APPEALS LODGED 
 
No appeals have been lodged since the last report. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

RICHARD SHORT 
ASSISTANT DIRECTOR CITY DEVELOPMENT 

 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended) 
Background papers used in compiling the report: - 
Letters, application files and appeal documents referred to in report. 
Available for inspection from: - 
City Development, Civic Centre, Paris Street, Exeter (01392) 265223 
 

Page 115



Page 116

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 PLANNING APPLICATION NO. 13/3219/03 - FORMER FOXHAYES PRIMARY SCHOOL, GLOUCESTER ROAD, EXETER
	5 PLANNING APPLICATION NO. 13/3089/26 - MARSH BARTON STATION, CLAPPERBROOK LANE, EXETER
	6 PLANNING APPLICATION NO. 13/3207/26 - NEWCOURT STATION, OLD RYDON LANE, EXETER
	7 PLANNING APPLICATION NO. 13/3101/03 - ORCHARD BUNGALOW, LUDWELL LANE, EXETER
	8 LIST OF DECISIONS MADE AND WITHDRAWN APPLICATIONS
	Delegated Report

	9 ENFORCEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
	10 Section 106 Agreements
	11 APPEALS REPORT

